
NOTICE

OF

MEETING

TOURISM DEVELOPMENT FORUM
will meet on

MONDAY, 11TH MARCH, 2019

At 6.30 pm

in the

COUNCIL CHAMBER - GUILDHALL WINDSOR, 

TO: MEMBERS OF THE TOURISM DEVELOPMENT FORUM

COUNCILLORS GERRY CLARK, SHAMSUL SHELIM, EILEEN QUICK (CHAIRMAN), 
NICOLA PRYER, ASGHAR MAJEED AND SAYONARA LUXTON 

SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS
COUNCILLORS MICHAEL AIREY, CHRISTINE BATESON, PAUL LION, 
JUDITH DIMENT, LYNDA YONG AND WISDOM DA COSTA

Karen Shepherd – Service Lead- Governance - Issued:01/03/2019

Members of the Press and Public are welcome to attend Part I of this meeting. The agenda is available on the Council’s 
web site at www.rbwm.gov.uk or contact the Panel Administrator Nabihah Hassan-Farooq 01628 796345

Accessibility - Members of the public wishing to attend this meeting are requested to notify the clerk in advance of 
any accessibility issues

Fire Alarm - In the event of the fire alarm sounding or other emergency, please leave the building quickly and calmly 
by the nearest exit. Do not stop to collect personal belongings and do not use the lifts. Do not re-enter the building 
until told to do so by a member of staff.

Recording of Meetings –In line with the council’s commitment to transparency the public part of the meeting will be 
audio recorded, and may also be filmed and broadcast through the online application Periscope. If filmed, the footage 
will be available through the council’s main Twitter feed @RBWM or via the Periscope website. The audio recording 
will also be made available on the RBWM website, after the meeting. 

Filming, recording and photography of public Council meetings may be undertaken by any person attending the 
meeting. By entering the meeting room you are acknowledging that you may be audio or video recorded and that this 
recording will be in the public domain. If you have any questions regarding the council’s policy, please speak to the 
Democratic Services or Legal representative at the meeting

Public Document Pack

http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/


AGENDA

PART I
ITEM SUBJECT PAGE 

NO

1.  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

To receive any apologies for absence.
 

-

2.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

To receive declarations of interests from Members of the Forum in respect of
any item to be considered at the meeting.
 

5 - 6

3.  MINUTES

To note the Part I minutes of the meeting of the Panel held on 26th November 
2018.
 

7 - 12

4.  THE FUTURE DELIVERY OF TOURISM SERVICES IN THE ROYAL 
BOROUGH OF WINDSOR & MAIDENHEAD

To receive a verbal report from Louisa Dean, Head of Communications and 
Marketing (RBWM). 
 

Verbal 
Report

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC

To consider passing the following resolution:-

“That under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public
be excluded from the remainder of the meeting whilst discussion takes place
on items xx on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of
exempt information as defined in in Paragraphs 1-7 of part I of Schedule 12A
of the Act"



PRIVATE MEETING

ITEM SUBJECT PAGE 
NO

5.  BUSINESS UPDATES 

Round Table from Visitor Management Forum members.

(Not for publication by virtue of Paragraph 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 
12A of the Local Government Act 1972)

-





 
MEMBERS’ GUIDE TO DECLARING INTERESTS IN MEETINGS  

 
Disclosure at Meetings 
 
If a Member has not disclosed an interest in their Register of Interests, they must make the declaration of 
interest at the beginning of the meeting, or as soon as they are aware that they have a DPI or Prejudicial 
Interest. If a Member has already disclosed the interest in their Register of Interests they are still required to 
disclose this in the meeting if it relates to the matter being discussed.   
 
A member with a DPI or Prejudicial Interest may make representations at the start of the item but must not 
take part in the discussion or vote at a meeting. The speaking time allocated for Members to make 
representations is at the discretion of the Chairman of the meeting.  In order to avoid any accusations of taking 
part in the discussion or vote, after speaking, Members should move away from the panel table to a public area 
or, if they wish, leave the room.  If the interest declared has not been entered on to a Members’ Register of 
Interests, they must notify the Monitoring Officer in writing within the next 28 days following the meeting.  

 
Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPIs) (relating to the Member or their partner) include: 
 

 Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain. 

 Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit made in respect of any expenses occurred in 
carrying out member duties or election expenses. 

 Any contract under which goods and services are to be provided/works to be executed which has not been 
fully discharged. 

 Any beneficial interest in land within the area of the relevant authority. 

 Any licence to occupy land in the area of the relevant authority for a month or longer. 

 Any tenancy where the landlord is the relevant authority, and the tenant is a body in which the relevant 
person has a beneficial interest. 

 Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where:  
a) that body has a piece of business or land in the area of the relevant authority, and  
b) either (i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of the total issued 
share capital of that body or (ii) the total nominal value of the shares of any one class belonging to the 
relevant person exceeds one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that class. 

 
Any Member who is unsure if their interest falls within any of the above legal definitions should seek advice 
from the Monitoring Officer in advance of the meeting. 
 
A Member with a DPI should state in the meeting: ‘I declare a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in item x 
because xxx. As soon as we come to that item, I will leave the room/ move to the public area for the 
entire duration of the discussion and not take part in the vote.’ 
 
Or, if making representations on the item: ‘I declare a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in item x because xxx. 
As soon as we come to that item, I will make representations, then I will leave the room/ move to the 
public area for the entire duration of the discussion and not take part in the vote.’ 
 
Prejudicial Interests 
 
Any interest which a reasonable, fair minded and informed member of the public would reasonably believe is so 
significant that it harms or impairs the Member’s ability to judge the public interest in the item, i.e. a Member’s 
decision making is influenced by their interest so that they are not able to impartially consider relevant issues.   
 
A Member with a Prejudicial interest should state in the meeting: ‘I declare a Prejudicial Interest in item x 
because xxx. As soon as we come to that item, I will leave the room/ move to the public area for the 
entire duration of the discussion and not take part in the vote.’ 
 
Or, if making representations in the item: ‘I declare a Prejudicial Interest in item x because xxx. As soon as 
we come to that item, I will make representations, then I will leave the room/ move to the public area for 
the entire duration of the discussion and not take part in the vote.’ 
 
Personal interests 
 
Any other connection or association which a member of the public may reasonably think may influence a 
Member when making a decision on council matters.  
 

Members with a Personal Interest should state at the meeting: ‘I wish to declare a Personal Interest in item x 
because xxx’. As this is a Personal Interest only, I will take part in the discussion and vote on the 
matter. 5

Agenda Item 2



This page is intentionally left blank



TOURISM DEVELOPMENT FORUM

MONDAY, 26 NOVEMBER 2018

PRESENT: Councillors Gerry Clark, Nicola Pryer (Chairman) and Sayonara Luxton

Officers: Julia White & Nabihah Hassan-Farooq 

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

Apologies for absence were received from Alan Mellins ( Maidenhead Heritage Centre), Clare 
Philpott, Clare Stanley- Spencer and Councillor Quick. 

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

None. 

MINUTES 

RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY; That the minutes of the previous meeting held on the 13th 
September 2018 were approved. 

WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS 

The Chair ( Councillor Nicola Pryer) welcomed all attendees to the meeting and asked 
members to introduce themselves. 

THE GREAT WEST WAY 

David Andrews, CEO of VisitWiltshire gave a presentation on the above titled item. Members 
of the forum were told that the “Great West Way” was a project funded by Discover England 
which aimed to market the route between London and Bristol as a premier tourism route. It 
was highlighted that this was a strategic opportunity for tourism and for tourists to explore 
places along the M4 route by highlighting routes, icons, historic sites and accommodation. 
Members of the Forum were told that the re-marketing of the M4 corridor as the “Great West 
Way” was aimed to encourage and invite the “curious visitor” to explore different destinations 
along the way. Various modes and routes, such as cycling, walking, waterways and railway 
lines were being developed to highlight the richness and diversity of places along the route. 
The fund was specifically utilised for international and domestic markets and it was noted that 
£1million worth of funding had been dedicated to the project. It was intended that the activity 
would be completed by the 31st March 2019 and that the main priorities of the project were to 
improve travel trade and itinerary development for tourists. Work had been carried out to 
develop both traditional and new experiences and products. 

The Forum were informed that there was a dedicated team of staff and advisory board who 
were working with upwards of twenty organisations, which included notable partners such as 
Great Western Railway and National Express. It was highlighted that this re-branding of the 
traditional routes and sights were a brand led approach and aimed to redevelop brand 
positioning and strengthen visual identity of places. Members of the Forum were shown the 
brand toolkit that had been designed to support the project and this included helpful 
information on how to best use the branding and examples of how to implement this into 
existing marketing frameworks. The targeted route was 125 miles long and partners long the 
route or within access to the main route were encouraged to join and become a part of the 
“Great West Way” project. Forum Members were told that editorial content had been created 
and that these photos had been used as a marketing tool both in print and across social media 
platforms. Input from industries and destinations had formed a major part of the informative 

7

Agenda Item 3



information available and there was a focus upon language and storytelling throughout the 
editorial content. A bespoke welcome programme for the curious visitor had been created and 
this had been well received with good feedback when it was piloted in March 2018. Brand 
development was evident in both signage and in the food and drink map. It was highlighted 
that development work was being carried out with producing a “Great West Way” passport and 
this would be stamped when an individual used the bus and rail lines along the highlighted 
routes. 

Forum members were told that positive feedback had been received from the Highways 
Authority and Waterways authorities and that they had adopted the signage. Promotion of the 
“Great West Way” had been presented at trade exhibitions and events; and it was noted that 
an event had been held at the Guildhall where VisitWiltshire had presented. The supporting 
travel trade directory had been launched in Bath with 350 bookable and trade friendly 
businesses. It was highlighted that there was a need for more products and that this was an 
opportunity for RBWM to join and highlight the experiences and products on offer throughout 
the borough. Members were told that currently 184 industries and destinations had signed up 
as ambassador and that Reading had also joined as a destination partner. The Forum were 
informed that a three year commitment was expected and that this would help embed the co-
branding with operators and organisations. The Forum were told that Windsor Castle had 
joined and that industry events had been held in Windsor. It was highlighted that the PR 
launch would take place on the 5th November, a further industry launch event would take place 
on the 22nd November and that the travel trade marketplace was scheduled for the 23rd 
November 2018. 

Councillor Luxton asked which waterways would be included in the “Great West Way” offer to 
visitors. It was confirmed that the River Thames, Kennet and Avon had been highlighted and 
that multi-modal routes were encouraged to promote interconnectivity and allow visitors to use 
routes which suited them best. There were future plans to connect routes and that this was a 
government backed project. A Member of the Forum asked whether Windsor would be 
categorised as a title brand or a destination brand. It was noted that this would be dependent 
upon the contributions made and that as a product ambassador a contribution of £20,000 per 
annum was expected. Members commented that Windsor was a standalone destination and 
that they would like to encourage overnight stays. It was commented that packages were 
encouraged with overnight stays in destinations and it was noted that some destinations were 
currently working with the project as stop off destinations. 

APPRENTICESHIPS IN LEISURE, TOURISM & HOSPITALITY 

Fiona Jones, Chief Executive of Slough Aspire gave a presentation on the above titled item. 
Slough Aspire are a training and events management company who were working to deliver 
effective training on Berkshire apprenticeships. They had been working with businesses to 
increase engagement and understanding of apprenticeships. Members of the forum were told 
that apprenticeships were available across a range of sectors. It was highlighted that there 
should be an apprenticeship agreement, contract and commitment statement in place and the 
organisation should be registered as a training provider. Members were informed of the 
differences between levy and non-levy paying providers and of the offsets available. The 
Forum were told that an individual apprentice’s performance should be monitored and that 
endpoint assessments should be carried out through mock activities and trials. It was 
highlighted that levy payers who had less than £3m in revenue would receive an offset of 
£15,000 against the levy liability and could be entitled to apply for a 10% top up by the 
Government.

Members were told that there were currently workshops on setting up and monitoring digital 
accounts. Members were told that smaller organisations would not have digital accounts and 
that this would be for larger organisations with £3m turnover of more. It was highlighted that 
apprenticeships could also be sourced from within the organisation as a means to upskill 
existing members of staff. It was noted that there was also a bursary available for care leavers 
of up to £1,000. Members were informed that in order to recruit an apprentice that this would 

8



need to be advertised or a standard could be created if the apprenticeship did not already 
exist. Members were told that across Berkshire that the highest level of apprenticeships were 
within the business, admin and legal sector, followed by health & public services and care. It 
was noted that only 6% of apprenticeships were found within the leisure and tourism industry 
and nationally the rate was 12%. 

ACTION-  That the presentation be circulated to all forum members. 

Members were encouraged to look beyond traditional apprenticeships and were told that new 
standards could be created using a trailblazer process. The Forum were reminded that there 
was a public service duty where 2.7% of the Local Authority workforce must be apprentices. 
The Forum were told that the Berkshire apprenticeships achievement awards were held at 
Legoland and this had been well received with good feedback. It was highlighted that the 
event- “ you want me to be an apprentice?” would be held on the 3rd December 2018 and 
further information was available at info@berkshire-apprenticeships.co.uk 

A member of the forum queried whether there were any age limits for apprenticeships and it 
was confirmed that there was no upper limit to age for an apprentice. Another forum member 
queried whether any work could be carried out to encourage apprentices after an 
unsuccessful recruitment campaign. It was noted that speaking with school children in earlier 
years was being carried out and that a new career strategy had been published which looked 
at the duty to engage and for a career lead to be in post at schools. Members agreed that 
speaking and engaging children from a younger age would widen their career horizons and 
that further highlighting of the diversity within the leisure and tourism industry was needed to 
gain a wider attraction from the available talent pool. Julia White, Tourism Manager 
highlighted that Fiona Jones had joined the People Task group and had been working to 
encourage uptake of interest within the hospitality/tourism sector. Councillor Luxton suggested 
that a career fair be held at the Guildhall, with vendors specifically involved in the 
tourism/leisure sector to peak interest in potential apprentices. At the conclusion of the 
presentation, members noted the presentation.   

ETON VISITOR INFORMATION CENTRE 

Julia White, Tourism Manager gave an update on the above titled item. Members were 
informed that Eton Community Association had applied for a capital bid to open an information 
centre in the spring of 2019. The premises would be located at number 67, High Street, Eton 
and that the premises were currently owned by Eton College. The Forum were told that the 
ongoing running costs would be funded by contributions by the Eton Community Association, 
local businesses and the college. It was noted that this could become a satellite for the 
existing visitor information centre. The centre would be open from Thursday-Sunday and the 
opening times would coincide with the Windsor museums and box office/activities. It was 
noted that there would be a larger premise space where retail use could be utilised. Councillor 
Luxton queried what the total cost to the borough was for the intended opening of the centre. It 
was confirmed that there was a capital bid of approximately £50,000 which was applied for on 
the basis of building costs and  to bring the building to the required building standard. 
Members were told that the opening of the new centre would encourage use of the 
regenerated Eton High Street.   

ACTION- Members requested that a breakdown of costs be circulated to members of 
the Culture and Communities Overview & Scrutiny Panel. 

At the conclusion of the discussion, members noted the update. 

NEW LEFT LUGGAGE FACILITY FOR WINDSOR 

This item was deferred to the next meeting as the speaker was unavailable. 

9

mailto:info@berkshire-apprenticeships.co.uk


VISITOR MANAGER UPDATE 

Julia White, Visitor Manager outlined the above titled item. Members were told that traffic to 
the online shop and box office was up by 28% compared to 2017. There had been mixed 
performance across all visitor attractions with some ticket sales up as much as 55% and 
others had been down by 30%. Members were informed that there were 17 hotel partners 
signed up to the concierge scheme and that ths had been the best year to date for Windsor 
Castle ticket sales. Traffic to the windsor.gov.uk site was up by 22% year on year and visits to 
the website during May were the highest on record. Members were told that uptake to Twitter 
was up by 22%, Facebook was up by 17% and Instagram was up by 44%. It was recorded 
that May 2018 was the best month for every social media channel/platform with similar 
performance in October. There had been twice as many new followers compared to previous 
records. Visit Windsor had risen on social channels from position 50 to 20 in the English 
Tourism Social Media Index. The Forum were told that coverage tracked to date had an 
estimated value of £714,457 and that the total estimated reach was £32.3 million. 

Meetings, Incentives, Conferences and Events

Members were told that there had been an average reach of 17,000 per month on Twitter and 
LinkedIn. Followers included, event agencies, event executives, Senior PAs, venues, 
bloggers/influencers and tourism industry partners who regularly retweeted posts to their wider 
audiences.  Members were told that the Twitter audience was comprised of 70% UK following 
and 24% from USA/Canada. Email marketing had been sent to over 3000 event executives, 
PAs and Corporate bookers. The Open rate on emails was 18% and a click rate of up to 10%. 
There had been two successful Solus campaigns for Amber Lakes and Sir Christopher Wren 
Hotel with great responses on their event and sales promotion. The Forum were told that 
enquiries through the agency partner were valued at £800,000 and that confirmed bookings to 
date were £127,790. There had also been six hosted buyer trips in 2018, the BNC Show and 
networking event, MeetGB, partnerships with P.A life and Meet Beyond London. 

Tourism Action Plan 2017-2020 

Members were updated on the three task groups, Marketing and Product, Travel and 
Transport and People. Members were told that the Marketing and Product Task Group had 
been looking and developing Windsor as London’s Country Estate. Work was being carried 
out to ensure that Windsor was looked at as a family discussed destination and to grow 
business tourism across the Royal Borough. The Travel and Transport Task Group had been 
looking at routes and the On Demand Bus Services along with Bike Hire Schemes across the 
locality. Members were told that the People Task Group had been working on the skills gap 
and perceptions of the industry through research conducted by Dr Karen Cripps at EBC. The 
Forum were told that English Tourism week was scheduled for the 30th March to 7th April 2019 
and that the focus was to promote careers in the Tourism and Leisure industry. Further work 
was being carried out to seek new talent and to promote apprenticeships. 

FUTURE BUSINESS AND COUNCILLOR ENGAGEMENT POST TOURISM 
DEVELOPMENT FORUM IN MARCH 2019 

Chris French, of the French Brothers gave a statement outlining of how the Tourism 
Development Forum had helped with networking within the industry, provided an invaluable 
forum for discussion with industry partners, received input from local councillors and that 
important information and ideas had been shared and advanced. Members discussed how the 
Forum would be management post March 2019 and discussed how the platform could be 
improved to be more focussed on particular topics of interest to Forum members and industry 
partners. Members were disappointed with the turn out of the evening and it was noted that 
there had been higher turn outs in the past with great engagement. Councillor Luxton 
suggested that the forum would continue to be run but would feed into town forums. Julia 
White, Tourism Manager highlighted that the change to the Forum was due to the reduction in 
the number of councillors as part of the boundary review. There would be a reduced number 

10



of meetings held and business which would normally be hard by the Tourism Development 
Forum would be heard by the two town partnership boards where necessary. Members felt 
that it was vital to shape the Forum moving forward and to retain some councillor involvement 
on key issues. 

Members were encouraged to communicate with councillors and Julia White on any issues or 
comments they felt were not made at the meeting and that any advancements to the 
conversation had would be circulated to the wider forum ahead of the next meeting. 

ITEM SUGGESTIONS FOR FUTURE FORUMS 

Members of the Forum were encouraged to inform the clerk of any items they would like on 
the next agenda and could email their suggestions to Nabihah.hassan-farooq@rbwm.gov.uk 

DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS 

The meeting, which began at 6.30 pm, finished at 8.42 pm

CHAIRMAN……………………………….

DATE………………………………..........

11

mailto:Nabihah.hassan-farooq@rbwm.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Declarations of Interest
	3 Minutes

